VILLAGE OF

NORTH
/A\ AURORA

Crossroads on the Fox

PLAN COMMISSION AGENDA
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 1, 2020
7:00 PM

Due to the current COVID-19 pandemic, the Plan Commission meeting will be conducted live remotely
using the Zoom telecommunications platform to help prevent the spread of COVID-19. The public is
invited to attend the meeting and participate remotely as follows:

Website Address: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87477401278
Meeting ID: 874 7740 1278
Dial In: +1 312 626 6799

This procedure is being followed pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 TLCS
120/2.01 et seq.) as amended by Public Act 101-0640.

ROLL CALL
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Approval of Plan Commission Minutes dated October 6, 2020.
PUBLIC HEARING

1. Petition #20-08 (307 Banbury Road): The petitioner, Marcos Rodriguez, requests the following
actions on the subject property located in the R-1 Single Family Residence District:

1) Special use to allow for the expansion of a Place of Worship
2) Site Plan Approval

2. Petition #20-09 (161 S. Lincolnway): The petitioner, PharmaCann, LLC, requests a special use
to allow for the expansion of an Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization in the B-3 Central
Business District.

NEW BUSINESS

1. Petition #20-08 (307 Banbury Road): The petitioner, Marcos Rodriguez, requests the following
actions on the subject property located in the R-1 Single Family Residence District:

1) Special use to allow for the expansion of a Place of Worship
2) Site Plan Approval

2. Petition #20-09 (161 S. Lincolnway): The petitioner, PharmaCann, LLC, requests a special use
to allow for the expansion of an Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization in the B-3 Central
Business District.

OLD BUSINESS
PLAN COMMISSIONER COMMENTS AND PROJECT UPDATES

ADJOURNMENT



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
OCTOBER 6, 2020

CALL TO ORDER
Vice Chairperson Duncan called the meeting to order.

ROLL CALL
In attendance: Vice Chairperson Jennifer Duncan, Commissioners Anna Tuohy, Aaron Anderson, Tom
Lenkart, Doug Botkin, Mark Bozik and Connie Holbrook

Not in attendance: Chairman Mike Brackett

Staff in attendance: Village Administrator Steve Bosco, Communlty & Economic Development Director
Mike Toth and Information Technology Manager Dave Arndt,

Also in attendance: Kevin Drendel, Village Attoéiey”

APPROVAL OF MINUTES N

1. Approval of Plan Commission‘Minutes dated September 1 2020 *‘f;%fiiﬁ;
Motion for approval made by Commlssmner Bozik and seconded by Commissioner Anderson. All in favor.
Motion approved.

PUBLIC HEARING

1. Petition #20-06 (301 Deerpath Road & 2040 West Orcgard Road): The petitioner, Specware,
LLC., requests the following-actions on the subject properties:

1) Special Use.- Planned Unit Development Amendment with deviations to the Zoning
Ordinance and Sign Ordinance’
2) Site Plan Approval

Vice Chairperson Jennifer Duncan opened the public hearing. There were no public comments. Jennifer
Duncan then closed the public portion of the hearing.

NEW BUSINESS

1. Petition #20-06 (301 Deerpath Road & 2040 West Orchard Road): The petitioner, Specware,
LLC., requests the following actions on the subject properties:

1) Special Use - Planned Unit Development Amendment with deviations to the Zoning
Ordinance and Sign Ordinance
2) Site Plan Approval

Community & Economic Development Director Mike Toth provided the Plan Commission with
background information on the proposed development. He stated that in 2015 a special use amendment was
brought forward for the Hardware Restaurant located in Orchard Commons. Hardware is located on Lot 4
and the hop farm is located on Lot 8. Toth stated that the petitioner is presenting a new restaurant concept,
Fortunato, for Lot 3, with is located south of Hardware. They also intend on opening a microbrewery in the
hop farm location on Lot 8. The petitioner, Parker Grabowski, discussed the design of the proposed



restaurant, Fortunato. He stated that the design was inspired by Frank Lloyd Wright’s Fallingwater building.
The exterior of the building will consist of cement partitions, stacked cubes of glass and a shiplap
appearance using steel panels of different thickness. Grabowski stated that the exterior brickwork of the
restaurant will be painted white. The windows towards the top of the building will allow for natural light
into the restaurant. Fortunato will have two (2) patios, which will be located in the front and off the back
corner of the building. The private patio located in back will be connected to a speakeasy room, which can
be used for private parties.

Fortunato will seat 90 people in the general restaurant area and will seat 110 people who are 21 and over in
a designated area. Grabowski stated he wanted to create an atmosphere that was adult friendly on one side
of the restaurant and kid friendly on the other side. The restaurant wﬂl be open from 3:30 PM - 11/12:00
PM six (6) days a week. The overall concept of the restaurant is Itahan seafood dining. The bar will have a
seafood counter built in to it and will showcase the seafood being offered, such as fresh oysters. All pasta
will be homemade in the restaurant and customers will have the ability to watch the pasta being made by
the chefs through a glass window on the “21 and older” side of the restaurant. The menu prices will vary
from affordable to upscale costs. Pasta will be offered in half order sizes and the menu will also feature
Neapolitan style pizza. There will be over twenty (20) pizza options to choose from and they can be ordered
in the restaurant or at the walk-up deli. The deli will also offer Italian style sandwiches, meats and cheeses
from Hardware, and different sauces from Turf Room

Grabowski stated that parking has been-added to the proposed development. There will be around 236
parking spaces to accommodate Hardware and Fortunato. He is planning on opening the restaurant in
September 2021 and intends on the microbrewery to follow twelve (12) to eighteen (18) months later. The
overall plan is to add another 100 parking spots at the microbrewery and entertainment center. Grabowski
proposed that another building will be built to house the brewery and barrel storage room and the old
brewery will be turned into a distillery. He stated that the inside of the barrel storage room would seat 120
people and the outside would accommodate 120 people. This could allow for large parties, weddings,
events, etc.

Toth stated that part of the special use approval would to allow for a setback deviation that is associated
with the southeast comer of the proposed restaurant. The required setback is 35° and the petitioner is
requesting approval for a 29.85 setback. The special use would also allow for the patio to be located in the
setback and in an easement. Toth confirmed that there are no utilities in the easement. The petitioner is also
proposing to install a roof sign with channel lettering on the eastern fagade. The sign ordinance does not
allow for roof signs, so this deviation would be part of the special use approval. Toth stated that he included
a condition for the roof signage that it could not blink, flash, or animate. Staff is recommending approval
for the site plan and special use.

Grabowski responded that the Fortunato signage is inspired by the old hotel signs from the 1940’s. He
stated that the signage will not blink or flash. The appearance is meant to look weathered in order to give
the building personality.

Commissioner Tuohy asked if the hop farm will stay in its current location. Grabowski responded that 60-
70% of the northern hop farm will stay. He stated that next year they will be installing hard covers and
dividers in each row so there will be no weed growth and the hops can be fertilized properly. When
customers go out onto the patio at Fortunato, they will be surrounded by the hops.

Commissioner Anderson asked at what point the Plan Commission should be concerned about future
applicants asking for the same kind of variances / special uses similar to what is being asked for Fortunato.
Toth responded that in 2015 when Hardware was requesting a special use, there was a setback deviation of
19° where 25° was required. There is precedence already within this development to allow for setback



deviation. Toth stated that when requests are presented for special uses, he looks to see how the deviations
will affect the surrounding areas. In this particular case, there is no side yard setback for these lots so when
analyzing how the setback deviations could affect the neighboring businesses, the impact is minimal.
Village Attorney Kevin Drendel responded that the Village can allow deviations or specific requirements
to achieve a result that is overall desirable. In a situation like this, where it is highly stylized and designed
to fit the property, the Village can deviate in a PUD so that it makes sense for the particular property.
Drendel stated that in this case, multiple parcels are owned by the same property owner and therefore the
parcels will have a common fluidity. The Village can allow quite a bit of deviation in a situation like this.

Commissioner Lenkart stated that he supports the roof signage design. He asked if Fortunato would offer
packaged pasta for takeout so customers could cook it at home. Grabewski responded that they would have
to get packaging licensing in order to do that so it may be something they look into down the road. He
stated they want to make the restaurant successful first and then work on packaging products later on.

Commissioner Holbrook stated that she had no questions and is lookfng forward to the development.

Commissioner Bozik asked what happens with the parking if the owner decides to sell off one of the lots,
since the two (2) restaurants will be sharing parking. Grabowski responded that Hardware can seat 205
people and they originally planned on seating 255 people, which the parking lot accommodated for. Toth
responded that if one of the lots were to be sold, each lot would be taken into consideration of what the
parking requirements would be in order to meet the parking requirements per the code. Village Attorney
Kevin Drendel responded that the Village could require a cross easement agreement that allows the shared
use of the parking lot as part of the amendment to the PUD.

Commissioner Botkin stated he had no questions.

Vice Chairperson Duncan asked what the parking was intended for on the west side of the building.
Grabowski responded that the four (4) spots closest to the building will be for deli parking and for pick up
orders. Duncan asked if there will be a separate entrance for the west side of the building. Grabowski
responded that there will be rvan'othqr entrance on the west side that will take customers right into the deli
area.

Motion for approval of a special use to allow an amendment to the planned unit development with
deviations to the Zoning Ordinance and Sign Ordinance with the one (1) condition being added, for a total
of three (3) conditions, made by Commissioner Bozik and seconded by Commissioner Botkin. Vote: Bozik
—Yes, Botkin - Yes, Holbrook — Yes, Tuohy — Yes, Lenkart — Yes, Anderson — Yes, Duncan - Yes. Motion
approved.

Motion for approval of the site plan made by Commissioner Bozik and seconded by Commissioner
Holbrook. Vote: Bozik — Yes, Holbrook — Yes, Botkin - Yes, Tuohy — Yes, Lenkart — Yes, Anderson —

Yes, Duncan - Yes. Motion approved.

OLD BUSINESS — None

PLAN COMMISSIONER COMMENTS AND PROJECT UPDATES

Toth updated the Plan Commission with the Forest Ridge Townhomes status. He stated it was presented to
the Committee of the Whole on September 21, 2020. There was general support for the project, but the
Board had some questions about the site plan since there were many concerns from the surrounding
neighbors. Toth stated the developer will be submitting an updated site plan based on the feedback received.
The updated site plan will go back to the Committee of the Whole for discussion.




Duncan asked why KDOT is replacing all the traffic lights on Orchard Road. Bozik responded that it is a
three (3) year project for KDOT and they will be upgrading the traffic lights from the north end of the
County along Randall Road to Orchard Road up to the County line.

Lenkart asked if the Village has any leverage to help foreclosed homes be put on the market and sold,
instead of just letting them sit there. Drendel responded that unfortunately there is not much leverage and
due to COVID-19, the court systems are not processing foreclosures so banks are Jjust sitting on them. The
Village can pressure the banks and fine them, but there is not much that can be done other than that.

Tuohy asked what outdoor dining will look like for restaurants as the fall and winter months approach. Toth
responded that the Village is still working on what the specific requirements will be for outdoor dining.
Village Administrator Steve Bosco responded that the Village has é;léwed each restaurant to set up an
outdoor dining area in their parking lots. The biggest concern 4vill be fire safety when restaurants set up
outdoor heaters, so staff will work with the Fire District to ‘enéﬁ?e‘pgép,,er accommodations are met.
ADJOURNMENT ; ,

Motion to adjourn made by Commissioner Bozik afid seconded by Commissioner Tuohy. All in favor.
Motion approved. $

Respectfully Submitted,

Natalie Stevens
Deputy Village Clerk



Staff Report to the Village of North Aurora Plan Commission
FROM: Mike Toth, Community and Economic Development Director

GENERAL INFORMATION

Meeting Date: December 1, 2020
Petition Number: 20-08
Petitioner: Marcos Rodriguez

Request(s): 1) Special use to allow for the expansion
of a Place of Worship 2) Site Plan Approval

Location: 307 Banbury Road

Parcel Number(s): 12-34-330-003, 12-34-401-034
Property Size: 2.19 Acres

Current Zoning: R-1 Single Family Residence District
Contiguous Zoning: R-1 Single Family Residence District (All)
Comprehensive Plan Designation: Public/Semi-Public Use

REQUESTED ACTIONS

Special Use - Expansion of a Place of Worship

Chapelstreet Church is proposing to add a 3,000 square foot addition and renovate 5,000 square feet of
existing interior space of the former Cornerstone Church located at 307 Banbury Road. Places of
Worship are classified as a special use in the R-1 District. Chapter 4.3 of the Zoning Ordinance states,

any modification or intensification of a special use that alters the essential character or operation of
the use in a way not approved at the time the special use was granted, as evidenced by the record or
by the text of this Ordinance, shall require new special use approval in accordance with this section.

Chapelstreet has the right to conduct business in the existing building as a Place of Worship; however,

expansion of the building is deemed an intensification of the use, thus requiring special use approval.

Hours of Operation
According to the petitioner, the church will accommodate 3-5 employees and operate Monday-
Thursday (9:00 a.m. — 4:00 p.m.) and Sundays (9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.).

Parking
The Place of Worship use requires 1 off-street parking space per 4 seats (worship seats) + 1 space per
1,000 square feet of residential living area if convent or rectory attached. According to the petitioner,



Staff Report 20-08
December 1, 2020
Page 2 of 2

the facility will contain a total of 237 worship seats and no residential living space. As such, the
Zoning Ordinance would require a total of 60 parking spaces. A total number of 70 off-street parking
spaces would be provided once the project is complete.

According to the petitioner, there is an existing agreement between Schneider Elementary School and
Cornerstone Church. This agreement allows the sites to utilize each other’s parking as required as the
hours of highest operation differ between the school and the church. This agreement would continue
under Chapelstreet Church, which would allow the church to have parking across the street during any
time when additional parking is required.

Site Plan Approval

Per Section 17.4.4(B) of the Zoning Ordinance, Site plan review shall be required for each building
permit application for multi-family, townhouse, commercial, and industrial development for which a
site plan has not already been approved. Site plan review shall not be required for any commercial,
office, manufacturing or multifamily structural addition that constitutes less than twenty-five (25)
percent of total square footage of an existing structure or any single-family/two-family construction.

The proposed expansion exceeds said (25) percent square footage threshold; therefore, site plan
approval is required.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Staff finds that the information presented meets the Standards for Specials Uses, as submitted by the
petitioner, and the Standards for Site Plan Review as set forth in the Zoning Ordinance. Based on the
above considerations, staff recommends the Plan Commission make the following motion
recommending approval of Petition #20-08, subject to the following condition:

1) One (1) shade tree shall be provided at the north and south end of the easternmost parking
aisle.



APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL USE

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA PETITION NO. @,
Board of Trustees
25 East State Street FILE NAME BANBIL/

North Aurora, IL 60542
DATE STAMP

L APPLICANT AND OWNER DATA

Nanlle of Applicant MARCOS RODRIGUEZ

Applicant Address 9645 LINCOLNWAY LANE SUITE 201 FRANKFORT IL

Applicant Telephone # 708 927 7698

Email Address MRODRIGUEZ@ASPENGROUP.COM

Property Owner(s) ABE DONCEL

Owner Address 2300 SOUTH STREET GENEVA IL

Owner Telephone # 630 232 7068 X 146

IL ADDRESS, USE AND ZONING OF PROPERTY

Address of Property 307 BANBURY ROAD, NORTH AURORA, IL 60532

(indicate location if no common address)

Legal Description: SEE ATTACHED FILE FOR LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Parcel Size 219 ACRES

Present Use CHURCH - ASSEMBLY - RESIDENTIAL

(business, manufacturing, residential, etc.)

Present Zoning District R-1 - SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE DISTRICT

(Zoning Ordinance Classification)

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019
Page 1 of 6



III. PROPOSED SPECIAL USE

(Zoning Ordinance Classification)

Code Section that authorizes Special Use

Has the present applicant previously sought to rezone or request a special use for the property or
any part thereof? NO

If so, when? to what district?

Describe briefly the type of use and improvement proposed

. 3100 SQUARE FOOT SINGLE STORY ADDITION THAT MATCHES THE
CHARACTER AND HEIGHT OF EXISTING BUILDING FOR USE FOR ADDITIONAL
" EDUCATIONAL WORSHIP SPACES AS PART OF AN A-3 ASSEMBLY CHURCH

What are the existing uses of property within the general area of the Property in question?

CURRENT USE OF THE SPACE IN QUESTION IS AN A-3 ASSEMBLY CHURCH
CONTAINING A WORSHIP/GATHERING SPACE, CIRCULATION SPACES,
RESTROOMS AND VARIOUS OTHER SMALL GROUP GATHERING SPACES

To the best of your knowledge, can you affirm that there is a need for the special use at the
particular location? (Explain)

IT HAS BEEN CONFIRMED BY NORTH AURORA STAFF THAT SPECIAL USE IS
REQUIRED AT THIS PARTICULAR LOCATION AND THAT THE SPECIAL USE
PROCESS IS TO BE FOLLOWED AS THE METHOD FOR THE BUILDING
PROJECT.

Attach hereto a statement with supporting data that the proposed special use will conform

to the following standards:

1. The proposed special use is, in fact, a special use authorized in the zoning district in which
the property is located.

2. The proposed special use is deemed necessary for the public convenience at that location.
3. The proposed special use does not create excessive additional impacts at public expense for
public facilities and services, and will be beneficial to the economic welfare of the

community.

4. The proposed use is in conformance with the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan,
and all Village codes and regulations.

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019
Page 2 of 6



v

1.

AP

N

10.

11.

The proposed special use will be designed, located, operated, and maintained so as to be
harmonious and compatible in use and appearance with the existing or intended character of
the general vicinity.

The proposed special use will not significantly diminish the safety, use, enjoyment, and value
of other property in the neighborhood in which it is located.

The proposed special use is compatible with development on adjacent or neighboring
property.

The proposed special use minimizes potentially dangerous traffic movements, and provides
adequate and safe access to the site.

The proposed special use provides the required number of parking spaces and maintains
parking areas, in accordance with the requirements of this Ordinance.

The proposed special use is served by adequate utilities, drainage, road access, public safety,
and other necessary facilities.

The proposed special use conforms with the requirements of this Ordinance and other
applicable regulations.

CHECKLIST FOR ATTACHMENTS

The following items are attached here to and made a part hereof:

Introduction Letter. Please include information relevant to the proposed use of the property
and business operations (hours of operation, number of employees, etc.).

Legal Description of the subject property(s).

Illinois Land Surveyor’s plat of survey.

Site Plan illustrating all existing and proposed improvements.

Statement and supporting data regarding Standards for Special Uses (above).

Filing fee in the amount of $300.00, if paid by check make payable to the Village of North
Aurora.

Specified escrow deposit ($4,000 minimum). May be included with filing fee. Remaining
funds refundable upon project completion.

Visit the Illinois Department of Natural Resources’ website www.dnr.state.il.us and initiate a
consultation using DNR’s EcoCat online application.

Visit the Kane DuPage Soil and Water Conservation District’s website
www.kanedupageswcd.org for a Land Use Opinion Application

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019

Page 3 of 6



The Applicant authorizes the Village of North Aurora representatives to enter on to the property to make
inspection during the hearing process.

The Applicant is responsible for publishing a legal notice in the newspaper, sending United States mail
notices to properties within 250 feet, and posting a sign on the property advertising the public hearing.
These shall be in accordance with village Ordinances at the times decided by the Village of North
Avrora.

The undersigned hereby agrees to reimburse the Village for all costs of court reporter fees for attendance
at and transcript of hearing(s) and other professional service fees for services rendered in connection
with this application as defined in Appendix B of the North Aurora Zoning Ordinance. Such
reimbursement shall be made promptly upon receipt of invoices from the Village, whether or not this
application for special use is approved.

I (we) certify that all of the above statements and the statements contained in any documents submitted
herewith are true to the best of my (our) knowledge and belief.

P A (0/28/ 1020

Applicant or Authorized Agent Date
Alee TS 10/28)2020
Owner Date

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019
Page 4 of 6



Following are the names and addresses of all property owners within 250 feet of the property in
questions for which the special use being is being requested.

TAX PARCEL NO.

12-34-330-004
12-34-330-005
12-34-330-006
12-34-451-001
12-34-451-002
12-34-451-003
12-34-451-004
12-34-376-012
12-34-378-001
12-34-378-002
12-34-378-003
12-34-452-001
12-34-452-002
12-34-452-003
12-34-452-004
12-34-451-007
12-34-451-006
12-34-451-005
12-34-330-014
12-34-330-013
12-34-330-012
12-34-330-011

12-34-454-016
12-34-454-017
12-34-454-018
12-34-454-001

12-34-454-002
12-34-454-003

PROPERTY OWNER

ESCALANTE, HECTOR
JONES, ANTHONY
ANAYA, JOSE & MEDINA, LUZ
WITKOWSKI, JOHN
FRIEDERS, TIMOTHY
LEE, JANI
JACKLEY, SHARON
ROGERS, KEITH & SHARI
CAVENDER, ALLEN & LAURA
HANSEN, MARK & CINDY
SMITH, KARI
SAVAGE, SCOTT & MICHELLE
MACKO, GARY & KAREN
PADGETT, JEREMY
VASQUEZ, LAURA
HUITE, ROBERT & JUDITH
RODRIGUEZ, NORA
GALVEZ, JAIME & IMELDA
MICKELSON, DANIEL & DEBORAH
FLORES, EMMA & FERNANDEZ, ELDA
SCHILTZ, GREGORY & KIMBERLY
LOTZ, MARK & BEVERLY
ESPING, JENNIFER
MILLER, JARED & AMANDA
BELOBRAYDICH, RUDOLPH & MARY
HARD, ALAN & SUSAN
VAN OVERMEIREN, ABEL
DEKING, PETER & ELDER, ALICIA

MAILING ADDRESS

305 Banbury Rd, N. Aurora
403 Chestnhut St, N. Aurora
405 Chestnut St, N. Aurora
407 Chestnut St, N. Aurora
409 Chestnut St, N. Aurora
411 Chestnut St, N. Aurora
413 Chestnut St, N. Aurora
224 Banbury Rd, N. Aurora
303 Banbury Rd, N. Aurora
404 Chestnut St, N. Aurora
406 Chestnut St, N. Aurora
408 Chestnut St, N. Aurora
410 Chestnut St, N. Aurora
412 Chestnut St, N. Aurora
414 Chestnut St, N. Aurora
404 Hickory St, N. Aurora
406 Hickory St, N. Aurora
408 Hickory St, N. Aurora
426 Flagstone Ct, N. Aurora
418 Flagstone Ct, N. Aurora
410 Flagstone Ct, N. Aurora
402 Flagstone Ct, N. Aurora
409 Hickary St, N. Aurora
407 Hickory St, N. Aurora
405 Hickory St, N. Aurora
403 Hickory St, N. Aurora
401 Hickory St, N. Aurora
309 Hickory St, N. Aurora

M{H/LQ)/; Tlop o wie = , being first duly sworn on oath certifies that all of the
above statements and the statements contained in any papers or plans submitted herewith are true and

correct.
A [D/2% |20

Applicant Signature Date

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO
28 day of [Q;/@/% 20 20

%MZW

Notary Public

Before me this

€ £zoz ‘9 ver saxdxa uoisspuwo) Aw
q  sioun so ave3s - 3gng Aseon

[ LE L= e

[ NVD3 NNV 3Ns

T YT T

_——r

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019
Page 6 of 6



(¢) ASPEN GROUP

INTRODUCTION LETTER
Chapelstreet Church
307 Banbury Road, North Aurora, IL

2020-10-26

This letter is in reference to the project at Chapelstreet Church.
Cornerstone Church was the former owner of the site at 307 Banbury Road.
Chapelstreet Church was gifted this property and seeks to grow an additional
fourth campus site in North Aurora.

Scope of work on site includes remodeling the existing worship room to
contain 237 seats. In a 1:4 ratio, 60 parking spaces are required. 61 parking
spaces are currently on site. Additional parking spaces are being provided as
part of the new scope of work. The total number of parking spaces on site will be
70, once work is completed.

Additionally, there is an existing agreement between Schneider
Elementary School and Cornerstone. This agreement allows the sites to utilize
each other’s parking as required. The hours of highest operation differ between
the school and the church which allows this agreement to be a win-win for both
entities. This agreement is to continue under Chapelstreet Church. This will
allow the church to have adequate parking across the street during any time
when additional parking is required. Capacity will be higher than normal during
times such as Easter and Christmas.

The project is comprised of 3,000 square feet of addition and 5,000
square feet of existing renovation. The addition, which is the majority of the
zoning changes, is to be used for worship educational spaces. These spaces
include a large group room, flex education rooms, restrooms, and a nursery
space to be used during normal church operations. This facility is not a day care
and will never be used as such. Operations of child care are limited to only
worship times and is biblical education-based. Under normal operations, the
church will accommodate 3-5 employees. The hours of operation will be
Monday-Thursday (9am-4pm) and Sundays (9am-12pm).

Aspen Group * 9645 Lincoln-Way Ln. Ste. 201 * Frankfort, IL 60423 + 815.806.1705
Prepared By : XXXX



(¢) ASPEN GROUP

Any other questions, feel free to reach out for additional information.

Thanks,

Marcos Rodriguez

Project Architect

END OF LETTER

Aspen Group * 9645 Lincoln-Way Ln. Ste. 201 * Frankfort, IL 60423 « 815.806.1705
Prepared By : XXXX



REPORT OF SURVEY OF PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS : =

THAT PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS : BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF UNIT
ONE, TWIN OAKS SUBDIVISION, THENCE SOUTH 88’ 55’ EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID
SUBDIVISION 425.73 FEET; THENCE NORTH 1’ O5" EAST 161.34 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 88’ 55’ EAST
120.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 1’ 05’ EAST, A DISTANCE OF 33.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88’55’ WEST, A
DISTANCE OF 120.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 1; 05; EAST, A DISTANCE OF 80.66 FEET, THENCE NORTH 88’
55" WEST 115.73 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 1’ 05" WEST 83 FEET, THENCE NORTH 88’ 55" WEST TO THE
CENTER OF BANBURY ROAD, THENCE SOUTH 1’ 05" WEST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 192 FEET TO THE
NORTH LINE EXTENDED WEST OF SAID UNIT ONE, TWIN OAKS SUBDIVISION, THENCE SOUTH 88’ 55
EAST ALONG SAID EXTENDED NORTH LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH
AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.



17U Nl VDA WU/ SETESTE - SUOLSUIVIOMS AT TVONNDENA | |

||I|.1|.|IUH

- ]
. T e o
2 [EuahS fSuave Ainnoo SNCiSENLGS | uz_oﬂﬂuuurdhﬂﬂ
.. AIAMNS 4O Lvid

-‘r!“m e WYY |

e - RO i —

=== -
T g

_ : [ e
1 2
LEC—K "ON W8NS ..ssnastlua.: ' n hn. MO NowTTL @ _ .
Al INOHITTIL ORISR
_ _ 2owvimg £ooey WO TR O f '
T MOV T 0 AT L HONTE WA oMz () LA T s [
|
v oy BRI O30 08 4 SMwacrds ¢ of Tsdeic “ 1 o opa ) | okl s 38 !
o £ R oo I s 08 TOUINCO o6 JuMUL OIS TS '
sssare gun wossiou sy e TEPIESCCTE = oy oz > ' _ ol RUBRIHMTELEE, «
sl 000 possou ey ned i Hoa STE _ N % Edlgo
oG Bav L ' D S DL O Ao ousoa 1
S i SRR MRS ] s v 1 5 ) o v iz 0 | _ Jrecsa
SOUTHIE P PRASTIING ULLBOR TS T NI T N ] I 0 OO 20 s T e o [TT000] whos aums o ' ;
{21 10 A ] s % s oS0 0 1 | "
e | R —— ==L
3 g 3y e dals Q0 ohessed T = _l _
i ) h< 0 Wou ot -~ ——  (inw ‘Sr9-0) JOR WA IMISA T 18 g W,
_ 20 THV> owaamy Guncuoonn ovuda N [y v < 12
| msﬁaiﬁnﬁaﬁ. o o 3 g !
' H 325 Kok W (0} V0 40 () 1 ——— e owso o _ _ _
( Jonons 3255 ik (5 15) AEATE ML oMUty —t—— MR KUV IS O )
_l _ 5 1 (5 03) VMR RIS Do) e e 1| o susia @ \ ! '
99 t
i ' ?m:g.nm_(nzﬁh _m _ ‘ _
‘ 1 “ ‘_ o H |
o &.,ﬁ, 4 ) i
£L58 g, T Wi &N
_——— e o ™, 0 Y K74
i ! : 0zt W 7 %t.,ﬂ,_ —— _
3 + g ¢ i
o E g o s -~
A | A e D
, r T ——. <y ¥
13 \a . M P ,._ &«. e; i
o ] — £3 ¢ PEASS W v »
] y o n . 3« 4 i ;v
F _z m.u L a,.. ,.0 \%F ‘m el e ¢ L
brd L N
3 ' e N o A
| I 72 BRI
13y -
— e — g e K v -
m el e Iy %H” & /: mﬁ? s. et

N
K3
%

%__

—
%ﬁ

AINEHNS 4O LVid

—

14N0D INOLSBVY




I/ 1 'ON133HS|

51D AS IMDIHD)

s> A" NMYHO

OE 1 OZW 'ON L33radd|

NVTd TIAID 3 LIS d2-3ud
SNY1d ONIHIIANIONZ T1¥YNId
erS09 I ‘VHMONNY HLHON
avod ANNENVYE LOE
NoOlLLIaay oNialng
SNAWVYD YHOUNY HLYON LIJULSTAIVHO

L ﬂ.tl,l\‘\
Fozs.
S
1 He
87710
i
. Telly
ng
i Y
am
H
A
o

dio uu.tmv<

0ZOZ (D LHOMALOD

30IGASIU ATIIVA TENS 7350

TSR AWWd TONS TSN

OIS S I TN g ooz LORUSI0 JNGESI AU TONS 1-3 OHNOZ

NOAEN AW TN TR
LOAILI0 THNIGERI ATV TONS 1-Y ONNOZ

TIBAETY AWVI TONS N
e inawasya oo

TN AUNS TONS TN

1200810 THGEERM LWV THHS i-4 BHMOT 19M0 THGOEIY AWIVA TING i~d TNPOL

- nanasva

SIOVAS 0L QIQNOHY DNINSYY WAL
STSvaS MAN & SNDRIVD B

(SAOYaS TMSSIOO £ SIANTIND $3IVaS 19 .ONDIVY X3

SIOVGS 0F ATMNDIY ONDINY

I

onditvd |

ft
(SIVES J6Z RAVALONYS X3) SLYIE P ABAT ¥O4 30V | EHNOIY SNDUYD mm
010 03504084
%00 ONLISKT wva | Jm
JOR— Bl
Ingud | - %
45 0L ‘NI Hd L
45 #C0G DNKINE 33 3715 DNKIING
4t QuvAZQIS )
06 QUYA VN m
Qi (QVOY AUABRVE] VA LNOYNS sovass | § x
s3wOvISLT 275 107 oS g
dHSUCM 0TIV 36N OM150@ A
1DI1SIQ 3ONIAISTY ATNYSTTONIS 14 oNNOZ DA m g
2509 SIONITH VNV HLHON o
QYON ANNENYS 205 & e
SNGNYD VAOHNY HLMON  HOUAHD JEFULETSAYHD ssa3uaaY > I
—— 1 _
1800 SNITHNG 80 SETINIONT TAD \ |
DT ANOUD QUODLREN  RENDISITNYI LS mm |
20508 SIONITY| ‘VAOUNY HLHON 2% |
V0N AUNGNYE 0%
SNANVD VHONNY HIHON - HOWNHOD [T3UL5 T3dVHI YINMORBIOEAIA !

anon ¥
w0 3003 w
oo 3w )
oM s

2aus 0108 2
3aus 03008 s
01 ks r

LMIHIA LUFUINOD

O _

TIYIE v
oEaLl

™ o =

HLHON

-

S30vas MOwrd DHLSIG CL

e ¥
g ‘

Sa0vas DNDRIYd ONUSO3 0L

-3 = -
8 o * *
: % 83
; -1 -
i © i 1
£ . : = J ;
] 8 i Lt I
L [ A 8 oy
+ - rl
- L Il
CE L Gl o :
-H £ | ) y
7 o 3 £ o0/ maweay i3
i 009z Pr- oA DNTHG QORI H
o S i
{3V o 0L
el R | \ﬂ!:&is P
-
15 L= |
&y i % &
D L 22 s
. | |
s
. . Iypiskast oN 000 W i
S R TN Ny XV E
s
TSI LV TONS TEA TN AUrYd TN ) TRy L NS T80
1m0 TGN SNA TN (o8 OHNOZ Lou1s0 TGN A TN Loy oz s v o T omaz 10150 TR ) TONE o8 oL
4
'}
11 T st

AN

ROUSH NWVA TIONS
LOMISI0 SONIOST ATV TINS 1-H THNOZ

Teou Kundiva

Ave=g0-Lrgnl B 80




00T’V

NV1d HOOU 13ATI NIYIN

- lHEIHJ.S‘IEIdVHZ)J

£Tr09 M| “MoHuBLy TOT SUNS due] Agp-ujodur S35

dNOo¥D NIdSY @

250911 ‘e101nY YHON ‘Peoy Anqueg (oE
dAIVI YHOHNY HLYON

E L ilsn

SILON TWHNIOTLHONY TYHANTD

i

HOUNHY J
L3TULSTAIVHI =y

e Liri ““_F rm”\.uv"\ 4
!

by

ad IO

L

S,

S S R

N

‘Wou @
_ 1_\ T3AONWIY HOIYILNI 48 DQHW«I
48 001€ NOILONYLSNOD M3aN | ONIUNEA ONILSIXT 4S 0809

L = ST

NY1d 30014 13ATT Z_<_2A/C

wo4

10

‘Wod




00z

SNOLLVATT3 HOMALX3

®

- 13341S13dVHD
£209 1 "MOPUBLY TOT 3UNS SuE Agw-ujoIuN Sp86

dNO¥D NI4dSY

2509 1 ‘e0.ny yUoN ‘peoy Ainqueg £0€

STUALYL SMLHON X0V TTYM NN §0'62
TWORLO313 - 02 NN

JaionuNoD T UM QUTEONe0D
30,01 SHOLV301 QHY 2215 ‘SNOLLYNIZHGY 11
O Y38 Y kv ES#Q.:E!E; wie

DA SL3UNSS WY $INA ORISR AN ucs
TYAH- ¢L HOING

TIFY 13348 335 51904 ONY.
400 AJONYD TNOTYONLE AN SAVIUALTY 01'20
A 00V SrOMLIY Bid

LY OL LS QY 40N oM VI AOR M8
¥

Qv TUALS EML ST HILVN UL YU

GIGUGVATRAOLN AL O3 LOOAENMOD MIN o'ta

ML HOLYA OL VLG NV WISV WaN T050

is a3z

GNY HOWDOMLEII KAV TS LSYIINE IR TR
Sz

NV HOYOI OHLIEND HILYN NI T2 Wes 1M

AUNOTYIL - 10 HOKIRG

MYRaY OLOMLIG 2020

“MYR3U 0L 00N NI 1520

SHOLLIGHD: OMUSEY3 -20 NOKING

B SHIONNOLUVAIH¥ORALE &

HouNHD JL.
LITULSTIAIVHD =y~

Al =B

18v3 - NOLLYATT3 xo_mm._.xwf

HLYON - NOILYAZ13 Holsaix3 &

b=

HINOS - NOLLYAT13 ¥ordarxa

M3IIA zo_mw.rxm@




07 au] drasg Wy LHOMAAD

ooL1 pn (N s e m@ — "L

| oany 200 (@3141a0W 10S BNILSIX3) WH3E /M 33HL ONLLNYId gneHS 18 00 o 2 °
B “BROLYIIAIZAME ORv
Lynuasio 108 GILOYINGI3Y HO DHLLSLG NOTVO 5 3
NOS183 TIVB 10CM 40 HOLIOS E
SHOILYNYI980 NWOUD . Ao | e PregioL  33sENL 3
N G3MEEI AL WAD o - {
3030 TIYHS §3501 "0310YdN0D
W w 05 BILoN TN XIW HOS ALV | Teiomixz TS TR FVHNORAS SANOWIZ 100  G9I03 aNow
of .
4 17 4 “SNOLLYLAIOTS ONY
3L -] R st A oy S ] wd  Wg wBuRipA tatiod Butquog, vooped weBUnEAH  60Q QUM (53
Fy W o O 338)TIva 1oaw . OMAIABIE HO
278 g t 40 doL Ko Nz Q3LGN BV BLTWVL NV — . g mes appneICH SBUNIG PO WL YRITD, XUBANG Al NOY (O]
5 pma N KN S0V —|——!
] |
3 os MISRIIE <Rl rve 1008 g *a RS PAR RS R0 [, TIOWNOY XMIDIBRUSED KV YO [o]
O 11v9 00K IHLONNOYY IV NIG3E TIVHS HASE TIVE 100U
| ¥V N0 ATV 241 ONNONY G21TMUISHOD 38 Tivhe
334 6VH 310N ONILAVIA BHL 5VAH08 YV LOOW 0TV S0M .1 2avo aansw — Wi mos 5 ey ouv ®
NI LNGHOD AZAD oK 0 XHOIH .2 HS30 ¥0R 03dOLONNOY a1y !
Sl o f — [, .
2508 2 oo HoR s 1430201 KO — | EINVINGD rd SN NOWAGD SAVN WORWiOE 5] anEHE
AUHEN ONIHIIIN OL 40N —— "43WN03Y S¥ III00N TS L0OY
WO AVAY TIDIOVE 2Y 1 ey -~
v caiieaa ey } smere Tyl T y 8% WOST  euieudguopluoRuEIRG AL LU ., WopeR X XYM
_ 8 VNG TV LOGY 40 doL JOOH MO NOLLIG LNZUNNG 052 “30vir0 G3HEING f / Ly nn ™ B ot
TONY L334 TWHO U3V WAL ONIINGHHNG | / — o ) )
Z NYHLBZHOM | L
NAOYD TTYEL00Y 136
0 av8  ‘MOS8T ey azwig LNy JPRINAT LB X Oy ZI¥30v @
80
® mn_ (@] _ BENNINGD e VI NCANGD AN IINVIOE L [z
8
g I T e i T
S ‘FINA3HOS ONILNYId
=
£, C O  ——
m. 3 &30 m WHOND335) 3OV TrINED
z — &
3 o
3 3 O wn
ERIE
iom a
=P E
>
K
w
PayRds PUE UMEIP S€ 110 943 I1TWOD 03 pazNbay
SRPIEW 4oy AP B (14 SIUIWARA {eUOHIPPR ON “SaIUECRIOSIP
| 4Ue 0 10911y dESPURT] ANON “PaYIZads PUE UMRID
— — 52 10M 24} 313(dWI0I 01 SINRUEND USRI
e *Auo 53[3UATE |EUORIPSUNT PUE J3UMa 3
341 404 p3zyRWILINS pue PaRLEND 3 SielalRW JAI0 pue SIUBd 2T -
‘pajuawBas ou pue Loows T ek
30 03 1% SALYP3QG PAAIN “suetd I} LD UMOYS SSIMIBYIO SSI(UN
'$3420| £ 40 Y149P WNWHUW & 0} I3 SPedS 3G 01 218 SAUIPIT 1T
"}120 POOMpIRY PIPPAILS 3Q O3 LIINI SPSQ B3 JO
1213150 18 28p3 YauaL)-# (E3)dh) € SpIAIA puE PIYIIAL 3G 0}
18 3} Wiy 55229 BUNSIXD Jf© 2AOUIAY HIOM JO YW AL DIA
‘ot
o501 U 9 39331
15p iy enb panosdde
1SAMPAN FupeIL SoMPIW
PuRwy |iosdol pIPUSWE UlW 7T AP O sp3q Bupued v 6 0
0007 tNVLIENOT |

“SUOLEPUSWIWO91 5 ICIEIOqE] PlEs Jad PIPUIWE pug AL01eI0qN
1121338 put AQ P1se1 AKIIOTE] 0q (1S (105403 1S BAIEN 'R

“sadojs 1:y pRRoXR 1Y)
sEa.E Papaas |12 10} 193Ue(q Q103 LOJSALS AIRIOdIND) 3piKald
*sea.8 papaas pus padeIspur] e Ui pue ‘spaqjued yosdoy

25 aAeU € 10} [1IUO) UOKSOID 10} AU S IONEIWOI YL L

*JPUMO I} 03 1500 (EUCIIPPE OU 1€ ¥
e pajeutisap jo apr ndnsip

Aue 4o oy 0} Jonenu03 —
| pue Fupe:8 jo suw) 03 povs Fiewosdde ase SIUY Wy PFS '

‘papuoid aq jeys afeuresp
10 PIACW 3G RYS ] 3 ‘SINOY-LZ LI ud 32N Jo Ino ujesp
10U 90p J1EM | UOREIEIR J3}eM 103 AN G HYSSHA 3L 'S

“s23uuIPIQ #URISPUF] wI0INY YUGN
10 SPE{HA I PUE LIS 13y SIEISP HapM Ao feys Bupued 931 p

{£00Z-1'047 ISNY) %2035 ARSINN 10j piepuelg LRI 3Ly
241y 20UpIOIIE Ul paiSIATEY pUE Ao 3 [leys QU Y "E

“s3uRUIP.Q 5, 3TEIA S 03 UIRICITE [euIew '
Jue)d o awaze|d 12{PEIIUB 1RY1 153 SUORIPUOD 5| WAUYME . ,,7 -

@despUR] Y IRSUOD jeIew Jug|d 4o JUSWRINId JOf ST pur . -
T J93dey) aaueWipIO FuIUCZ eL0INY YUDN JORTEIA OL IR T

SNOISIASY

‘SUSWa NI AYIGISI "m0’ 3Gnd ‘spIepuels
SunasuBus s Aidiwoa jeys Swawaa adeaspuer pue unueld [

‘STLON TVH3INID ONLLNVd

L)

uopdposag
3
e

¥

?OE.ODthZOO d0d LON




(®) ASPEN GROUP

STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USES
Chapelstreet Church
307 Banbury Road, North Aurora, IL

2020-10-26

1)The proposed special use is authorized for R-1 Residential zoning district. The
proposed use is consistent with what is currently existing on the site. The
previous owner was a church-assembly, and the new owner with proposed site
improvements will also be a church-assembly.

2)The proposed special use is vital for public convenience as providing a space
for worship for the surrounding neighborhood. The use provides an important
part of the fabric of societal culture.

3)The proposed special use will not cause hardship to the surrounding area as
the facility creates opportunity. Ministry programs aide areas of the community
that suffer form poverty, violence, and neglect. The church is a sanctuary for
those seeking mental healing and guidance. All of this impacts the welfare of the
community in a positive way. As for parking, the ability to maintain the
agreement with Schneider Elementary allows the church to avoid parking in
neighborhoods and parking along thoroughfares. This would avoid costly
impacts to the Village in the form of law enforcement the few times a year the
church requires additional parking capacity beyond the 1:4 ratio.

4)The project scope is in conformance with village codes, regulations, and most
notably the Comprehensive Plan. The church will assist in future growth to help
North Aurora retain the characters and goals described in the plan. The church
property will help make the area more welcoming, walkable, encouraging, agile
to the movements of future plans.

5)The existing building and surrounding residential homes are comprised of
shingle roofs, siding and brick facades, and relatively modest window openings.
The new structure will maintain said materials. The new structure, as designed
in the documents, will be construction of shingle roof, brick and siding facades
with a concrete block masonry wainscoting. It can be concluded that new
improvements will not significantly depart from existing character of the general
facility.

6)As discussed previously in item #3, the church will work through its ministries
to advance the causes of safety and welfare throughout the community. The
church will upkeep the property and ensure that home values are not affected

Aspen Group * 9645 Lincoln-Way Ln. Ste. 201 » Frankfort, IL 60423 « 815.806.1705
Prepared By : XXXX



() ASPEN GROUP

through any situation of disrepair with the property. The church contains many
other sites in the area that are maintained to high standards of property
management.

7)Proposed special use as a church is a building type readily found in residential
neighborhoods and would be compatible with adjacent housing/residential
properties.

8)Under normal conditions, the church will be able to contain all vehicular
parking on site. The surrounding thoroughfares are low speed. There is an
adjacent school with school zones. The surrounding area is accustomed to
caution in the immediate vicinity. The church’s volume on Sundays would not
cause danger traffic movements with the low vehicular traffic in the area.

9)The proposed sanctuary will require 60 parking spaces. There are 61 existing
parking stalls. The new scope of work will place the number at 70 parking spaces
total.

10)The site contains existing utilities, drainage, road access and public safety. All
will remain as such, The new addition will not substantially affect any of these
infrastructural systems. The previous church structure was demolished by a fire
emergency event years ago and an existing slab remains on site. That slab will be
demolished as part of the project. The area of that slab will be replaced with a
new impervious structure of relative size. Therefore, impervious area will not
substantially increase.

11)The proposed site improvements conforms to applicable regulations of
zoning and ordinances as set forth by the Village of North Aurora.

Thanks,

Marcos Rodriguez

Project Architect

END OF LETTER

Aspen Group * 9645 Lincoln-Way Ln. Ste. 201 * Frankfort, IL 60423 «» 815.806.1705
Prepared By : XXXX



Staff Report to the Village of North Aurora Plan Commission
FROM: Mike Toth, Community and Economic Development Director

GENERAL INFORMATION

Meeting Date: December 1, 2020

Petition Number: 20-09

Petitioner: PharmaCann, LLC

Request(s): Special use to allow the expansion
of an Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing
Organization

Location: 161 S. Lincolnway

Parcel Number(s): 15-04-426-010,-011,-013

Property Size: Approximately 2.78 acres
Current Zoning: B-3 Central Business District

Contiguous Zoning: North — B-3 Central Business District, South - B-3 Central Business District,
East — B-3 Central Business District, West — B-2 General Business District

Comprehensive Plan Designation: Local Commercial

BACKGROUND

On October 21, 2019, the Village Board approved Ordinance #19-10-21-01, which allows for the sales
of recreational cannabis in approved Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organizations. Said use is
classified as a special use in the B-3 Central Business District and all other non-residential zoning
districts. The Zoning Ordinance defines Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization as follows:

A facility operated by an organization or business that is licensed by the Illinois Department of
Financial and Professional Regulation to acquire cannabis from licensed cannabis business
establishments for the purpose of selling or dispensing cannabis, cannabis-infused products,
cannabis seeds, paraphernalia or related supplies to purchasers or to qualified registered medical
cannabis patients and caregivers, per the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act, (P.A. 101-0027), as it
may be amended from time-to-time, and regulations promulgated thereunder.

On December 2, 2019, the Village Board approved Ordinance #19-12-02-11 granting a special use to
allow Pharmacann to operate an Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization at 161 S. Lincolnway.
While the opening of recreational cannabis sales on January 1, 2020 created an adverse impact on the



Staff Report 20-09
December 1, 2020
Page 2 of 2

subject property and surrounding area, there have not been any operational site issues brought to
Village Staff’s attention for several months.

PROPOSAL

PharmaCann, LLC (d.b.a Verilife) continues to sell both recreational and medical cannabis in their
1,832 square foot tenant space in the River Park Atrium building located at 161 S. Lincolnway. Staff
notes that Medical Cannabis Dispensaries are classified as a permitted use in the B-3 Central Business
District. The River Park Atrium building consists of multiple office spaces. Verilife is proposing to
expand their operations into an adjacent tenant space. With the proposed expansion, Verilife would
occupy a total of 3,578 square feet. According to the petitioner, the additional space is needed to
operate more efficiently and serve the existing demand.

Chapter 4.3 of the Zoning Ordinance states, any modification or intensification of a special use that
alters the essential character or operation of the use in a way not approved at the time the special use
was granted, as evidenced by the record or by the text of this Ordinance, shall require new special use
approval in accordance with this section. Verilife has the right to conduct business in their existing
space; however, expansion of the business is deemed an intensification of the use, thus requiring
special use approval.

Parking

There is no specific parking requirement for the Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization use; as
such, it is classified as a general retail goods establishment, which requires four off-street parking
spaces per 1,000 square foot gross floor area. With 3,578 total square feet of area, the proposed use
would require 14 total off-street parking spaces. There are 155 existing off-street parking spaces on the
subject property, which are shared amongst the various building tenants. According to the petitioner,
40 parking spaces will be specifically reserved for dispensary customers.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Staff finds that the information presented meets the Standards for Specials Uses as submitted by the
petitioner and as set forth in the Zoning Ordinance. Based on the above considerations, staff
recommends the Plan Commission make the following motion recommending approval of Petition
#20-09; subject to the following conditions:

1) The dumpster enclosure(s) shall be gated on the fourth/south side.

2) Refuse shall not be permitted to accumulate such that it is visible outside or above the height of
the enclosure.

3) The property owner shall regularly monitor all on-site parking conditions to ensure adequate
parking for all business tenants at all times.



APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL USE

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA PETITION NO. 2 O —C)"i
Board of Trustees
25 East State Street FILE NAME 1ol S. Lincacnawiet Soscian OSS
North Aurora, IL 60542
DATE STAMP

I. APPLICANT AND OWNER DATA

Name of Applicant  PharmaCann, Inc.

Applicant Address 190 South LaSalle Street, Suite 2950, Chicago, lllinois 60603

Applicant Telephone # 708-919-5641

Email Address _brett.novey@pharmacannis.com

Property Owner(s) _TylerGlenLLC

Owner Address _161 S. Lincolnway. Suite 302

Owner Telephone #  630-408-0772

II. ADDRESS, USE AND ZONING OF PROPERTY

Address of Property _ 161 s. Lincolnway. Suite 301, 302 and 304
(indicate location if no common address)

Legal Description: See attached

Parcel Size 117,353 sq. ft.

Present Use Medical Cannabis Dispensary and office
(business, manufacturing, residential, etc.)

Present Zoning District B3 - Central Business District
(Zoning Ordinance Classification)

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019
Page 1 of 6



III. PROPOSED SPECIAL USE

Proposed Special Use _Recreational Cannabis Dispensary
(Zoning Ordinance Classification)

Code Section that authorizes Special Use Title 17.8.2

Has the present applicant previously sought to rezone or request a special use for the property or

any part thereof? yes
If so, when? 12/2/2019 to what district? special use

Describe briefly the type of use and improvement proposed

The applicant seeks to expand its current cannabis dispensary into adjacent space in the existing building. The
dispensary space will encompass 3,578 sq. ft.

What are the existing uses of property within the general area of the Property in question?

Uses of existing property in the area are other medical office uses, commercial uses and the Village police
department.

To the best of your knowledge, can you affirm that there is a need for the special use at the

particular location? (Explain)

There is a need for this special use at this location as it will allow the existing dispensary to expand into larger
space and thereby operate more efficiently and better serve the existing demand. The site is situated among other
commercial uses rather than residential uses and will have similar hours of operation.

Attach hereto a statement with supporting data that the proposed special use will conform

to the following standards:

1. The proposed special use is, in fact, a special use authorized in the zoning district in which
the property is located.

2. The proposed special use is deemed necessary for the public convenience at that location.
3. The proposed special use does not create excessive additional impacts at public expense for
public facilities and services, and will be beneficial to the economic welfare of the

community.

4. The proposed use is in conformance with the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan,
and all Village codes and regulations.

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019
Page 2 of 6



v

10.

11.

The proposed special use will be designed, located, operated, and maintained so as to be
harmonious and compatible in use and appearance with the existing or intended character of
the general vicinity.

The proposed special use will not significantly diminish the safety, use, enjoyment, and value
of other property in the neighborhood in which it is located.

The proposed special use is compatible with development on adjacent or neighboring
property.

The proposed special use minimizes potentially dangerous traffic movements, and provides
adequate and safe access to the site.

The proposed special use provides the required number of parking spaces and maintains
parking areas, in accordance with the requirements of this Ordinance.

The proposed special use is served by adequate utilities, drainage, road access, public safety,
and other necessary facilities.

The proposed special use conforms with the requirements of this Ordinance and other
applicable regulations.

CHECKLIST FOR ATTACHMENTS

The following items are attached here to and made a part hereof:

1.

AN

Introduction Letter. Please include information relevant to the proposed use of the property
and business operations (hours of operation, number of employees, etc.).

Legal Description of the subject property(s).

Illinois Land Surveyor’s plat of survey.

Site Plan illustrating all existing and proposed improvements.

Statement and supporting data regarding Standards for Special Uses (above).

Filing fee in the amount of $300.00, if paid by check make payable to the Village of North
Aurora.

Specified escrow deposit ($4,000 minimum). May be included with filing fee. Remaining
funds refundable upon project completion.

Visit the Illinois Department of Natural Resources’ website www.dnr.state.il.us and initiate a
consultation using DNR’s EcoCat online application.

Visit the Kane DuPage Soil and Water Conservation District’s website
www.kanedupageswcd.org for a Land Use Opinion Application

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019

Page 3 of 6



p2
Nov 10 20, 01:48p

The Applicant authorizes the Village of North Aurora representatives to enter on to the property to make
inspection during the hearing process.

The Applicant is responsible for publishing a legal notice in the newspaper, sending United States mail
notices to properties within 250 feet, and posting a sign on the property advertising the public hearing.
These shall be in accordance with village Ordinances at the times decided by the Village of North
Aurora,

The undersigned hereby agrees 1o reimburse the Village for all costs of coun reporter fees for attendance
at and transcript of hearing(s) and other professional service fees for services rendered in connection
with this application as defined in Appendix B of the North Aurora Zoning Ordinance. Such
reimbursement shall be made promptly upon receipt of invoices from the Village, whether or not this
application for special use is approved.

I (we) certify that all of the above statements and the statements contained in any documents submitted
herewith are true to the best of my (our) knowledge and belief.

1 - 1/iof20
Amo‘:mm -ammcv?ﬁ/a,yuw Date /

Qﬂﬁ%/ Dais 7 s

Owner

Application for Special Use 3/25/2019
Pagedof 6




Following are the names and addresses of all property owners within 250 feet of the property in
questions for which the special use being is being requested.

TAX PARCEL NO. PROPERTY OWNER MAILING ADDRESS

See attached for list of property ownars

I, l(ﬁjﬂlm { Wdt.u:f [ , being first duly sworn on oath certifies that all of the
above statements and the statements contained in any papers or plans submitted herewith are true and
correct.

fge— o 0120
piicant Signature "HJY ,W ate

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO
Before me this [ () 3 day of NOVINY 20 20

O LV VST N —

e

Notary Public  ~

OFFICIAL SEAL
MICHELLE EDELSTEIN

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF
RLINOI
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:DQIZ?IZZS

Application for Special Use 3/26/2019
Page 6 of' 6y



NOTICE LIST



1504426011

TYLER GLENLLC,

161 S LINCOLNWAY STE 311
NORTH AURORA, 1L, 605421662

1504401013

LOTUS PACIFIC HOLDING LLC,
TSANG CHU

1100 SHERMAN AVE STE 115-A4
NAPERVILLE, IL, 60563-4855

1504401019

NORTH AURORA VILLAGE

25 ESTATE ST

NORTH AURORA, IL, 605421634

1504401021 1504426010 1504426012

SLAKER FAMILY TRUST, TYLER GLEN LLC, BRACKETT, RICHARD D DCLRN OF

SLAKER ROBERT J & WILLIAM P KEVIN FITZPATRICK TR, TRUSTEE,

COTRUSTEES 161 S LINCOLNWAY STE 311 43 SILVER TRL

813 REVERE CT, WESTMONT, IL 60559 NORTH AURORA, IL, 60542-1662 NORTH AURORA, IL, 605421580
1504426021

1504426013

TYLER GLENLLC,

161 S LINCOLNWAY STE 311
NORTH AURORA, IL, 60542-1662

1504426017

CREMER, CARL F & THERESA A
153 SLINCOLNWAY

NORTH AURORA, IL, 60542

LINDOO, WILLIAM C JR TRUST
LINDOO WILLIAM C JR OR RHONDA F
TRUSTEES

055016 SWAN RD

BIG ROCK, 1L, 60511

1504426022

FOX METRO WATER RECLAMATION
DISTRICT

682 STATE ROUTE 31

OSWEGO, IL 60543

1504427012

FOX VALLEY PARK DISTRICT,
101 W ILLINOIS AVE
AURORA, IL, 605065989

1504427013

FOX VALLEY PARK DISTRICT,
101 WILLINOIS AVE
AURORA, IL, 605065989

1504427014

FOX METRO WATER RECLAMATION
DISTRICT,

CONTROLLER

682 STATE ROUTE 31

OSWEGO, IL, 605438500

1504476017

TA, ANDREW D MD & MARY E
315 PINECREST CT

AURORA, IL, 60504

1504426020

RODRIGUEZ, FLORENTINO

145 S LINCOLNWAY

NORTH AURORA, IL, 60542-5113




LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PARCEL 1: LOT 1-A AND THE EASTERLY 200 FEET OF LOT 1 OF GRAHAM'S SUBDIVISION OF SAMUEL
GRAHAM'S ADDITION TO THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE
COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 2: THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED BY BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF J. F.
SLAKER'S ADDITION TO NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 00
MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID ADDITION, 452.92 FEET TO THE CENTER
LINE OF LINCOLN WAY (STATE HIGHWAY ROUTE NO. 31); THENCE NORTH 14 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 00
SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, 202.38 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF LOT 1-A IN
GRAHAM'S SUBDIVISION OF SAMUEL GRAHAM'S ADDITION TO THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, EXTENDED WESTERLY; THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 44 SECONDS EAST
ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE AND SAID SOUTHERLY LINE EXTENDED, 439.03 FEET TO THE
SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT (BEING ALSO THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF THE
CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY LANDS); THENCE SOUTH 17 DEGREES 45 MINUTES
00 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 209.60 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING, IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

Commonly known as: 161 South Lincolnway, North Aurora, IL 60542
Tax ID: 15-04-426-010, 15-04-426-011, 15-04-426-013



PLAT OF SURVEY



PARCEL 1:

PARCEL 2:
THAT FART OF THE SOUTHEAST /& OF SECTION 4.

LEGEND

= BITUMINGUS PAVEMENT

= CONCRETE PAVEMENT

= BRICK PAVERS

= CATCH BASIN

]

® STORM MANHOLE

8

= SANITARY MANHOLE
~ WATER VALWE VAULT

= B-S08

H & Xs

~ FIRE HYDRANT

b

= SIGN
23 - LGHT
- = HOLLARD

= TELEPHONE PEDESTAL
o = CLEAN-OUT
S

{1 = SURVEYOR'S NOTES N
SEHEDULE "

PROKCT NQ.: 18-113

ACCURATE SURVEY SERVICE,

28 W. 123 INDUSTRIAL AVE.
BARRINGTON, IL 50010
FPHONE: (B47) 381-B725

LOCATICN MAP

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY

LOT 1-A AND THE EASTERLY 20G FEET OF LOT 1 OF GRAHAM'S SUBDMWSION OF SAMUEL GRAHAM'S ADDXTION TO THE VILLAGE uf NORTH AURORA, IN THE VILLAGE OF
NORTH AURORA, KANE COUNTY. ILLINOIS

IOWNSHP 58 NORTH, RANGE & EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED BY BEGINNING A THE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF J. F. SLAKER'S AJDITION 1O NQRTH ALRORA, KANE COUNTY, LLINGIS; DEGREES DO MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE
NORTH LINE OF SAD ADDITION, 452.92 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF LINCOLN WAY {STATE HIGHWAY ROUTE NO. 31); THENCE s 00
SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID CEWTER UNE, 20238 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF LOT 1-A IN CRAMAM'S SUBDIVISION OF SAMUEL GRAHAM'S ADDITION TO THE VILLAGE
OF NORTH AURDRA, KANE COLNTY, ILLINGIS, EXTENDED WESTERLY; THENCE NORTH 88 DEGRELS 10 MINUTES 44 SECOMDS EAST ALONG SAID SOUIKERLY UNE AND SAID
SOUTHERLY LINE EXTENDED. 439.03 FEET T0 THE SOUTREASTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT (BEING ALSQ THE WESTERLY RIGHI OF WAY LINE CF THE CHICAGD AND
NORTHWESIERN RAILWAY COMPANY LANDS); THENCE SOUTH 17 DEGREES 45 MINUTES OO SECORDS EAST AIOND SAD WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 209 €0 FEET T¢ ™Z
POINT OF BEGINNING, N THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA. <ANE COUN'Y. LLNOIS.

THENCE SOUTH B9
NORTH 14 DEGREES 17 MINUTES

\
\

i

\ GRAPHIC SCALE
‘éﬁi

X o
k!

\ BASIS FOR BEARINGS ON SURVEY 1S THF
NN WL BTAIE PLANE CUORUNATE SYSTEM

B
N

WLTY POIES & DERED ST ey [
w0 RECORDED FSuT 1 IRE FOLAATNT .

SURTY POLL & GVOREAD UTLL e »
(W ReErOxD Eour TE o s (ozaz swooew 7

2
%
\- | e s e e o o o e et
% SENER SYSIE. A5 CONDEWED . CASE MO, 7602 FILED AUQUST 13,
EY o 106 EASTERLY 20 FEET OF LOTS ) iso 1
P EASTERLY 73 FEE OF PARCEL
a

[mores G PLAT)

'S, EASEUONT FCR COMMCIG 10 A SEWER S ESABUSAD N 16 66D
RECORDED CECEVGER 20. 1938 AS DOCLUENT MIUGER 4308%6.

Ag 13

R
{002, A WARRANTY DFED. 1O UENTICN OF SEUER EASEMENT B DOC. BUT CAANTS
TASEUENT FOR LAYING UNDEAGROUND COPPER TAPE RADWALS POR RADIO St
R Bt o 6 oo o Ao o &7 18 1A DucleERED

o Y SAD EASDMENT.]

20 _EASEMENT I FAVOR OF NORTHERN LLNOIS GAS COUPANY, AND ITS
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. TO WSTALL. OPERATE AND UAINTAIN 1L
PUREGSE

T PROVSOUS RELATWG DHERETD CONTARED W THE GRAN

T REGCROED APRE.
DOCLAENT MO 3181314

[ 0w ON PLAT]

M 21 EASEMENT N FAVOR OF IME FOX VALLEY PARK NSHECT fOR STORW SEWER AS
CREATED aY GrANT FAQu FIRST MATIONAL DA OF GENEVA AS FRUSTEE
UNDER TRUST NUMBCR 2334 RECORDED SANUSRY 7, 1988 AS BOCULENT
NUMBER 1867697

[0l o PLAT)

NOTES:
1.) COMMONLY KNOWN AS 161 5. LINCOLNWAY, NORTH AURORA, IL 60542
2) PERMAMENT INDEX NUMBERS:
PART CF PARCEL 1. 15=04=426=-010
PARCEL 2 15-04-426-011
PART OF PARCEL 1: 15-04—426-D13
3) THIS SURVEY IS BASED ON A TITLE COMMITMENT BY FICELITY NATICNAL TITLE INSLRANCE COMPANY.
ORDER NO.: 20°C C26503730 CWF, COMMITMENT DATE: UANUARY 1Z, 2018,
4) AREA OF SURVEY = 117383 5. FT. = 2654 ACRES
5) AREA OF BUILIMNG FOOTPRINTS = 23,528 5Q. FT
6) § OF STANDARD PARKING SPACES = M3
7.) # OF HANDICAP PARKING SPACES = 4

4) THE FROPERTY IS SITUATEQ IN A ZONE "% PER FIRM. NO. 170B9CO340H, EFFECTIVE DATE (8/03/2009.
ZONE "X" DENOTES AREA OUTSIDE OF THE 100 YEAR FLOOD 2ONE.

9) PROPERTY PRESENTLY ZONED "8-3 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRIC® PER WILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA COWMURITY DEVELOFMENT

10} ~EIGHT OF BUILDING 35.9° ON EAST SIDE  ALSC BULDING IS 3 STORIS TALL ON EAST SIDE.

11) 15° FRONT YARD SETBACK LINE & 20° REAR VARD SET BACK LINE PER CURRECT ZONING IS PLOTTED ABOVE ON DRAWNG
12.) SIDE YARD SETBACKS PER CURRECT ZONING IS O FT - THERFORE NO SIDEYARD SETBACK LINES COUKLD BE PLOTTED.

N UME OF UF. SLAKER'S ADDTON TO N AURORA SL8

NOTES PERTAINING SCHEDULE "B” IN TITLE COMMITMENT

2

. RIGHTS OF WAT FOR ORARAGE TLES, DITCHES, FEEDERS AND LATERMLS, &
r [EFFECTS ©XTE PROPERTY]

e ﬂ

EASCUENT N FAVR OF COUMONAEAL T EDYSOH COMPANY, A |

[sHOw: o4 PLAT]

OF THE PUBLIC, THE STATE OF KUWOS MO T LUNCPADTY 9 AND
O IHAT PART OF W LANG, If ANY: TAKEN OR LSED TOR ROub FLRPOSES.

(s10m o1 PLATY

ZONING RESTRICTIONS

0.

1.} MCREN SUBREIT, LLC A DELAWARE LIMITE LIABIL TY COMPANY,
AND ITS SUCCESSORS AND/OR ASSIGNS

21 TYLER GLEN. LLC AN ILLINOIS UMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

COMMONWEALTH LAND TITLE INGURANCE COMPANY

STATE OF LUNOIS) o
COUNTY OF LAKE)

ws IS To CERTFY MAT Tuis PLAT AND THE SURVEY O WHICH T
BASED WERE MADE (N ACCORDANCE WITH JHE 2015 uwuu
STANDARD DETAIL Rmunktu:ms FOR ALTA/NSPS LANi
¥S, JOINTLY ESTABLISHEQ AND ADOPTEQ BY i AND NSPS.
AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1. 2, 3, %, 8(c). 7a), 7(0)(*), 7(b) 2), c), 8.
9, 10(c}, 13, 14, 16, 17, '8, 19, 20, AND 21 OF TABLE “A" THEREOF,

THE FIELD WORK WAS COMPLETED ON FEBRUARY 8. 2018

DATE OF PLAT: FEBRUARY 2, 2017,
o,
D




SITE PLAN



o 301440 WO

al
a [

[ 3538 ]

R
WNOOH
AHOMMVIHE
33A07TdN3 N3O

45¢lp
39VNH0LS
12NQ0¥d 34nJI3s

L1
CI
|

48 599
¥001d4

S37vS ONISN34SIa

48 65
ONILIVWNOILD303Y
ONILSIX3

aSevl
Kooy

Y2d ONILSIX3

3565 A
SYFQUOINTINO  /
1 9NISSI0Ud

S0d

/
(S R

I = 1 e i R
SOd _won_ _mon_ Tol _mom_._ AV1dsid
[ 35657 |
STWS/AIddNS

¥J01s Ava

—



SPECIAL USE STANDARDS



North Aurora

Special Use Application

PharmaCann LLC

161 S Lincolnway, Suite 301, 302 and 304 — Expansion of Recreational Cannabis Dispensary

1)

2)

3)

4)

The proposed special use is, in fact, a special use authorized in the zoning district in which the
property is located.

The proposed site is in the B3 — Central Business District, which permits Recreational Cannabis
Dispensaries as a special use.

The proposed special use is deemed necessary for the public convenience at that location.

The proposed special use is deemed necessary for the public convenience at this location as the
site has operated as a medical dispensary and the adult use cannabis dispensary since January
2020. The expansion into additional space within the same building will allo the public to be
served more efficiently. It will also continue to drive increased tax revenues into the Village.
This particular location is well-suited to accommodate this use due to the office/commercial
nature of the area.

The proposed special use does not create excessive additional impacts at public expense for
public facilities and services, and will be beneficial to the economic welfare of the community.

The proposed special use does not create excessive additional impacts at the public expense.
Expanding into additional space will alleviate any potential impacts as there is increased capacity
to accommodate customers. The applicant has implemented an online ordering and reservation
system that further alleviates any impacts that may be caused by waiting customers. The
applicant has operated a dispensary at the existing location and addressed any issues that arose
at the outset.

This use will be beneficial to the economic welfare of the community as sales of Recreational
Cannabis can be taxed beyond general sales taxes for the benefit of the municipality, generating
additional revenue for the municipality.

The proposed use is in conformance with the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan
and all Village codes and regulations.

The proposed special use will help to further enhance a vibrant and unique commercial use
consistent with the goals of the Comprehensive Plan to develop Lincolnway into an attractive,
multifunctional corridor and to promote and maintain vibrant commercial areas throughout the
Village to serve the day-to-day needs of local and regional residents.

The expansion of the Recreational Cannabis Dispensary will specifically address the Village's
objective to encourage new commercial uses that will increase the range of employment
opportunities and strengthen and expand the Village’s tax and economic base.



5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

The proposed use will be operated in accordance with all Village codes and regulations.

The proposed special use will be designed, located, operated, and maintained so as to be
harmonious and compatible in use and appearance with the existing or intended character of
the general vicinity.

The applicant proposes to expand the existing adult use cannabis dispensary. The space is
currently designed and operated in a manner that is harmonious and compatible in use and
appearance with the surrounding uses. The expansion of the use will continue in a professional
and harmonious manner so as to maintain and enhance the character of the neighborhood as a
whole.

The proposed special use will not significantly diminish the safety, use, enjoyment and value
of the property in the neighborhood in which it is located.

The proposed special use will not significantly diminish the safety, use, enjoyment and value of
the property in the neighborhood. On the contrary, it will expand upon an existing, unique use
in the neighborhood, which will help increase the value of the area. The use will continue in an
existing space and will be operated by the current operators. The experience of these operators
will help ensure the use will remain consistent and compatible with the surrounding uses.
Consistent with State of lllinois requirements, the operator will have a robust safety and security
plan to ensure no diminution in safety for the neighborhood.

The proposed special use is compatible with development on adjacent or neighboring
property.

The proposed special use, just as the current use, is compatible with development on adjacent
or neighboring property. The location is in a center with medical office and professional services
as well as commercial uses. Other, similarly varied commercial uses populate the street.

The proposed special use minimizes potentially dangerous traffic movements, and provides
adequate safe access to the site.

The proposed special use is in an existing building with safe ingress and egress to Lincolnway.
Access to the site will continue to operate safely even with the expansion. The existing building
and parking area is designed to promote traffic and pedestrian safety and to minimize
potentially dangerous traffic movements.

The proposed special use provides the required number of parking spaces and maintains
parking areas, in accordance with the requirements of the Ordinance.

The dispensary location is in an existing building which provides parking as required by village
ordinance. Forty (40) spaces on the site will be specifically reserved for dispensary customers.

10) The proposed special use is served by adequate utilities, drainage, road access, public safety,

and other necessities.

The proposed special use will be adequately served by adequate utilities, drainage, road access,
public safety and other necessities, in the same way that the existing use is served at this
location.



11) The proposed special use conforms with the requirements of this ordinance and other
applicable regulations.

The proposed site is in the B3 — Central Business District, which permits Recreational Cannabis
Dispensaries as a special use. The existing site otherwise complies with the requirements of the
zoning ordinance and other applicable regulations.



